Plaintif?
and

Tascan Trading Lixmited Defendant

(By original action and counter-claim)
AND
Between

Tascan Trading Limited Plaintif?
and

Jackfrost France S.4.2.L. Deferdant
and

» Intern=ationzl Limited Third Party

e
ction and counter-claim)

In 1975 ard 1977 the Royal Court reard evidence in the above case.
The issues in the case are sumzerised as f8llows.

-~ .

in 1973, Grunhaliles Lager International Limited (hereinafter c2lled

J'brunhalle") brewed a special lager for export, known as Grunhalle
Py
Brport Lazer (hereinafiter czlled “"the lager") a% Randall's Bravery,

Clare- Stirsci, St. Hslier. 1In May, 1973, Grunhalle appointed Wr,i. Ash
its sole concessionaire for zDurovs in resvect of its preducts, includin

the lager. It vas agresd by Grunhalle that that concessicn weuld be

; _— - e ’ p S gt o
operated by a limited liability cowpany which Mr. Ash was then forning;
: o £ J e
that company was called Tascan Trading Linited (hereinafter referred to
;
[ 21 e - - . B X 2 e - 4. T J
as "Tazecan"), Subsequently, Tascan zppointed Jackfrost France, S.A.R.




Petween March and July, 1974, Grunnalle supplied to the order of
Tascan quantities of the lager which Taccan in turn invoiced to Jackfrost
for sale in France. Jackfrosti was dissatisfied with the quality of some
of the lager supplied to it as aforesaid. It also complained that the
‘lager was not in accordance with samples whicn had previously been

distributed to potential customers. Jackfrost therefore sought

assurances through Tascan that the lager would be of a consistent
- quality in the future.
Moreover, although Tascan had appointed Jackfrost sole distributor
in France, Grunhalle purported to veto that appointment on the ground
* that Tascan was not empowered under the terms of its appointment as sole
—pcuncessionaire to make such an appointment. Jackfrost was not prepared
- to continue to sell the lager unless the issue of the appointment of
Jackfrost as sole distributor in France was resolved. Assurances to that
- effect were therefore sought through Tascan.
Ha&ing failed to secure such assurances from Grunhalle, Tascan by
- -letter dated 10th July, 1974, informed Jackirost that Grunhalle would
- not agree to the appointment of Jackfrost as sole distributor, that if
Jackfrost wished to continue selling the lager it must conform to rules
— laid down by CGrunhalle, and that Grunhalle reserved the right to change
}Luc brew every week. On receipt of that information, Jackfrost decided
to cease selling the lager.

Grunhalle had not teen paid for any of the lager supplied to Tascan
for re-sale to Jacxfrost, and therefore submitted its account for
£2,479.52 to Tascan, wno in turn submitted its account to Jackfrost for
£2,810.32, teing its account for the said lager (including its profit).
Neither account was paid, with the result that this action came before
the Court.

Grunhalle actiored Tascan for the amount of its account; namely

£2,47%.52, and Tascan in turn acticned Jackfrcst for the amount of its

N

account, namely, £2,81C.32.

Jackfrost /
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Jacxirost denied liability on the ground that the lager was not in
accordance with the samples supplied and some of it was of an inferior
quality, with the result that custcmers refused to place further orders
and some refused to accept delivery.

Jackfrost also counter-claimed against Tascan on the ground that,
by writing the aforesaid letter of 10th July, 1974, Tascan was in breach

of two essential terms of the agreement between the two companies, namely,

~ that the quality and specification of the lager to be supplied would

remain constant, and that Jackfrost would be appointed the sole
distritutor for France. Jackirost stated that by reason of that breach

i’ had no alternative but to cease dealing in the lager ard claimed

c~Damzages in respect of the costs it incurred in establishing its

business in France arnd of the profits which it would have made if the
agreement had been honoured.

In reply, Tascan agreed that in the light of its letter of 10th
July, 1974, which was the result of a meeting between Mr. Ash and Mr. p.@.
Clubb, larnzging Director of Grunkalle, Jackfrost had no alternative but
to cease dealing in the lager, but claimed that it had throughout acted
in good faith and had taken all possible steps to fulfil its obligations,

2- 7 that therefore Jackfrost's counter-claim should more properly lie

vagainst Grurhalle, but in the alternative if the counter-claim properly

lay against Tascan then Tascan was entitled to be indemnified by
Grunhalle. At the request of Tascan, Grunhalle was convened as a Third
Party to tae counter-claim against Tascan.

In Answer to the action against it by Grunhalle, Tascan pleaded
that the lager suvplied to it by Grunhalle Tor resale to Jackfrost was
inferior to the sample originally provided. Furthermore,\@runhalle
purported to refuse to consent to Tascan's appointment of Jackfrost as

sole distributcor in France and refused to supply Tascan with saleable

beer for distrivution in France, as a result of which Jackfrost was

unable / ...
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—unatle to order further supplies of the lager. 1In concsequernce Tascan
-denied being liable in the sum claimed or in any sum. It further
—counter-claimed for general and special damages in respect of actual
—and potential losses which it incurred as a consequence of the breaches
—of warranty and breach of contiract by Grunhalle.
In Reply to the counter-claims both of Tascan and Jackfrost,
. Grunhalle stated that it had no contract witah IKr. Origlia or Jackfrost,
= and that therefore, if there were any contract or agreement concluded
- between either of them and Tascan, the remedy for any breach thereof
=~ did not lie against Gruxnhalle. It furtner stated that Tascan.nad no
a .ority to appoint either Mr. Origlia or Jackfrost as sole-distributor
— of the lager in France. It therefore maintained its claim.
g The two actions were consolidated and were heard together.
The Court delivered a written judgment on 8th March, 1978. By
- consent, that judgment was confined to the issue of liability, the issue
- of the quantum of damagés {if applicable) being left cver for further
-~ argument.
For the reasons set out in its judgment on liability, the Court
— held -
(1) that Jackfrost was liable to Tascan for the account for
the second delivery, and that Tascan was in turn liable to
Grunhalle therefor;
(2) that as regards the third delivery, Jackfrost should account
to Tascan and that Tascan should in turn account to Grunhalle, for
the amount only of the lager which was sold and for any returnable
bottles or crates rertaining to the lager which was sold;
(3) that Tascan éid, and was entitled to, appoint Jackfrost as
sole distributor in France;
(4) that the letter dated 10th July, 1974, from Tascan to
Jackfrost entitled Jackirost to repudinte its coniract with Tascan

rcach of contract against

o’

and to brinz an action for damages Tor
[5) |5

Tascan by way of counter-claim;
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(5) that Tascan was in turn entitled to be indemni

Grunhalle in respect of that counter-cleim of Jackfrost;

(6) that Tascan was alzo entitled to recover damages in its

own right against Grunkalle by reason of the wrongful conduct

of Grunnalle which led to the ending of the contract between

Tascan and Jackfrost.

Grunhalle appealed against those decisions of the Court mentioned
in paragraphs (3) to (6) above, but that appeal was dismissed by the
Court of Appezl.

Following that dismissal, the Royal Court has now heard evidence and
arguments on the issue of dacages claimed by Jackfrost against Tascan and
¥  Tascan ageinst Grunhalle, and this judzgment relates to that issue.

The Court therefore has to assess the proper award of damages under
the following heads:

As regards Jackfrost against Tascan:

1. The expenses incurred in setting up its business of selling
the lager in France, which proved abortive by reason of
Grunhalle's wrongful conduct and caused Tascan to be in breach
of contract to Jackfrost, and certain ancillary expenses;

2. Compensation equivalent to the future profits (if any) which
it would have made in respect of that business if there had
been no breach of contract by Tascan arising out of Grunhalle's
wrongful conduct.

As regards Tascan, compensation equivalent to the future profits

(if any) which it would have made in respect of the business of selling

the lager {o Jackfrost if there had been no breach of conitract by

Grunhalle.

e are notv asxed to assess the expenses claimed by Tascan in setting

N

selling lager to Jackfrost, because the varties hope

Fh

up iis btusiness o

<

to azree the amount of special damages, but if they cannot they will come
back to Court.

For the avoidance o doudt, we wish to emphasise that, by consent,
this action and therefore this judgment is not concerned with any claim
which Tascon moy have arainst Grunhalle in respect of its operations as

bal

cgole concessionraire in any country in Furcpe other than France.



Ve begin with thz claim of Jackfrost for expeases. That claim
is in four parts.

First, there is the claim for expeaces incurrsi in setting up
the business in 1974. The details of the expenses were calculated by
M. Salliou, a French accountant engaged by Jackfrost. He first detailed
all the expenses of Jackirost, and then apportioned the amount which
in his opinion was properly attributable tp the business of selling
the lagsr. Deducting a gross trading profit of 11,000 francs for that
year, the balance clzized by Jackfrost under this head amounts to
67,037.00 francs. We are satisfied as to the accuracy of this figure.

We were asked to award simple interest on this TFigure, and we
agree. We have decided that interest at the rate of ten per cent shculéd
run from 30th September, 1974, until 21st September, 1980. The total
amount of interest is 40,050.31 francs.

Secondly, we were asked to award a sum of 13,67%.00 francs under
the heading of "Patentes" (local taxes payable by Jackfrost) for 1974.
Counsel for Grunhalle queried whether, because Jackfrost was trading
before it commenced the business of selling lager, all the expenses
claired under this head vwere attributable to that business. We are
satisfied that thsy are. We award interest at the rate of ten per cent
for the same period as above, amounting to 8,168.74 francs.

Thirdly, bvecause Jackfrost remained in being as a Company until
1980, =although it was not trading, it was required to pay an "impot"
of 1,000 francs in eacn of the years 1974, 1976 and 1977, aand of 3,000
francs in each of the years 1978, 1979 ard 1980. Counsel for
Grunhalle gueried whether ths whole of these arounts were attributadle
to the lager business, because Jackfrost traded toth before and after
that dbusiness. Ve are satisfied that the figures are correct, and that

it was necescary fTor the Company to remain in existence afterwards

[

2l proceedinzs. We therefore award the sum of
12,000.00 francs urder this head, and simple interest at %=n per cent

for the saume p

(0]

riod as above, amounting to 3,400.00 francs.

Tourthly / ...



Fourthly and lastly, we were asked to award a sum of 13,670.00
francs, being the "honoraires" of M. Salliou for the years 1976 to
1980 inclusive. We agree.

The amount of expenses thus awarded totals 157,999.05 francs, and
because the expenses were incurred by a French company in France we
make our award in French.francs.

For convenience, we attach a detailed calculation of our award.

We next turn to the claim for general damages by Jackfrost against
Tascan.

Because the Court had found in its previous judgment that Tascan
was in turn entitled to be indemnified by Grunhalle in respect of the
counter-claim of Jackfrost, the claim for general damages by Jackfrost
is in effect a claim against CGrunhalle. Moreover, during the hearing
Tascan supported the claim of Jackfrost because the success of its own
claim'against Grunhalle is dependent entirely upon the outcome of
the claim of Jackfrost.

It was agreed by all-the parties that the measure of damages
due to Jackfrost and to Tascan was the loss of profits (if any) which

1ey would havz made from celling the lager if there had been no
breach of contract. As McGregor on Damages (1l4th Edition) states at
paragraph 184 on page 127 -
fThe starting point in resolving a problem as to the

measure of damages for breach of contract is the rule

that the plaintiff is entitled to be placed, so far as

money can do it, in the same position as he would have

been in had the contract been performed."

In this case that involves an estimate by the Court as to what profits
would have teen zade.

That rule iz limited by the consideraticn of what was in the
contemplation oi the partiec. That limitation was stated and

explained in the leading case of Hadley -v- Baxandale (1854) 9
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Ex.341, and re-stated with modifications by the Court of Appeal in
Victoria Laundry -v- Newman (1949) 2 K.B. 528. In the light of

the conclusions to which we have come on the evidence, we do not
consider it necessary to examine further in this judgment the principles
stated and re-stated in those authorities, except to express the

view without hesitation that at the time of the formation of the
contracts between CGrunhalle and Tascan and between Tascan and Jackfrost
respectively, both Grunhalle, in the formsr case, and Tascan, in the
latter case, anticipatzd that considerable profits were likely to

e rade eventually. It therefore follows that had we been satisfied
that very substantial profits would in fact_have been made but for

the breach, then we would have awarded general damages accordingly.

" We were addressed by counsel for Jackfrost on the issue of
certainty and referred to the leading case of Chaplin -v- Hicks
(19115 2 K.B. 786. He submitted that although the Court in this case
was faced with a difficult task because of the many uncertainties and
contingencies, they were not such as to relieve the Court of the
duty of assessing the proper damages. Counsel for Grunhalle concaded

ais, and we agree, difficult though our task is.
Ve next briefly summarise the relevant background.. Prior to
1972 CGrunhalle acauired a Ravarian recipe for a lager with a view to
brewing it in Jersey and exportirg it to France. Grunhalle thought

that its distinctive flawvour would aprezal to the French ccnsumer,

[

and had high hopes of success. In 1972 Grunhalle exported it direct
to a Ir. Thebault, a wholesaler in the Dinard area and proprietor

of the Brasserie de la Rance. Sales were negligible as there was
apparently only one outlet, fhe Hotel des EFains ait Dinard. Nevertheless,
Grunhalle remained very optimistic as to Tubure cales, both in France

and in Durove, and in flay, 1973, appcinted Mr., Asn as its sole

concegsicnnaire / ...



concezsionnaire in Europe for the lager.

As we have stated, r. Ash in turn arranged for the concession
to be operated by Tascan, a Company which he formed for the purpose.
He re-appointed Mr. Thebtault and appointed a further wholesaler in
the Dinard area, a Mr. Blanchard, and arranged other openings. He
sold only £2,C00 worth of the lager during 1973 (he was limited to
a period of some two to three months because of matters beyond his
control), but because of the favourable way in which the lager was

zceived ne (as well as Grunaalle) was confidexnt that the prospects
werc excellent, so much so that he decided, having met lir. Origlia,
to appoint Mr. Origlia's existing French Company, Jackfrost, as sole
distributor for France so as to enable him to concentrate on the
rest of Europe. The appointment was subject to Jackfrost ordering
its first trailer load.

Mr. Origlia, having obtained certain assurances at a meeting at
the offices of Grunhalle on-.4th February, 1974, and having satisfied
himself as to the quality and price of the lager ard the prospects
»f its success, conducted a preliminary marketing operation at the
Jersey Chamber of Commerce Stand at the Foire de Rernes in April,
1974. For that purpose he ordered thirty cases of the lager which he
gave avay at the stand. He was delighted with the favcuratle
response and on or apout 24th April Jackfrost ordered twelve hundred
cases from Tascan, thereby bringing into operation the confirmation
of its app;intment by Tascan as sole distributor for Irance.

That first delivery arrived in a generzlly broken condition ard
had to be returncd and revliaced by a second delivery. Jackfrost sant
a further order chertly aftervwards, and this, which we call the third
delivery, was decpatched on 2rd June. Unfortunately, as Grunhalle
adniitted, the lager in this delivery was immzture, and led to
complaints from customers. As a result, some of it was never sold.

Jackxfrost complained to Tascan and to Grunhalle, rtut sent a further

order / ...



order on 4ti suly, asking for prompt delivery 'because it is now

the noliday scuson and we are in great demand." A furtner order wvas
sent on 8th July. Neither of thcse orders was ever executed because
Grunkalle had not been paid by Tascan, and Tascan in turn had not
been paid ty Jackfrost, for the previous deliveries. On 10th July,
as vwe have already stated, the contract was brought to an end by the
wrongful ccorduct of Grunhalle.

Between April and July, 1974, Jackfrost sold or gave away
between 2,00C or 3,000 cases of the lager. It received from sales

,000 francs (or, say, £2,342.11) and made a gross tradirng profit of
about 11,000 francs. Mr. Origlia claimed, however, that taking into
account the expenses of setting up the new business Jackfrost made
a substantial loss, and we accept this.

Ve have sumzarised this background because it underlines one of
the main difficulties in this case. The breach of contract occurred
at such an early stage in the enterprise of Jackfrost that there was
not time for a clear pattern of trading to emerge to assist in
showing whether the enterprise was likely to be profitable. Counsel

r Jackfrost and for Tascan submisted that all the signs indicated
that the enterprise would have been extremely successful, whereas
counsel Tor Grunhalle subtzitted that it would have continued to make
a loss. In the absence of any clear trading pattern emergin
before the breach cf ccntract, we have to be guided by the other
evidence which was put tefore us.

Before we consider this, however, we must refer to the anticipated
duration of the contract, because that affects the quantuan of damages.
It appears that the duration of the sole concession granted to
Tascan, and of the solz Jictribatorship granted to Jacxfrost, was

not specifically diccusced tefore entcring into the contracts.
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pevertineless, th= rarties azreed at the hearing that we should for
our purpoges asswnz a pericd of five years, that is to say, 1974 to
1978 inclusive. e do so, with, however, this qualifi ation, which
we thirk is reasonable, that if, contrary to the high _xpectations

of the parties at the time, the enterprise of Jackfros+ had nct
turned out successfully, then it would have terminated before the

end of the five year period, because we do not believ that Jackfrost
would or could have continued to trade at a loss.

We come now to the evidence which was put befor¢ us, and we
start with Jackfrost's own assessment of the profits :hicn it would
.-«ve made. Early in 1974 lr. Origlia asked Iir. Sall >u. the French
accountant of Jaciirost, to prepare an "Etude" or fc 2¢ st of the
net profits which Jackfrost could expsct te receive irn: the sale of
the lager in France. @Mr. Salliou, who had had no e:~pe:ience of
marketing beer, prepared his Etude for the five yea 's 2974 to 1978
on the basis of the number of cases (containing 24 "¢ tles eacn)

which Mr. Origlia forecast that Jackfrest would be obie to sell in

each of those years. That forecast was as follows

1974 Sector Brittany-Norcandy 1 1,000 cases
1975 Sector Brittany-Normandy %20,000C cases
with externsion to the Paris Sector 200,000 cases
a total of 500,000 cases.
1976 With extension to the Lyon Sector 750,000 cases
1977 Vith extension to the Provence, Cote
d'Azur Sectors 1,920,000 cases
1978 1,202,000 cases.
On those projected sales figures, lMr. Sallic , ohim2iof that

Jackfrost would make a net vrofit (after tax) as =

1974 53,000 franc
1975 350,000 franc
1976 750,000 fran

1977 1,100,000 fran -

1978 1,350,020 fran.:
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, total net profit (after tax) over five years was therefore forecast
4+t 3,603,000 francs.

Counsel for Jackfrost conceded that there were so many
uncertainties that it would be unrealistic to ask the Court to award
that total sum by way of damages. He therefore proposed that that sum
(which counsel estimated to be the equivalent of about £380,000 at the
rate of exchange ruling at the date of the hearing) should be discounted
by some sixty per cent, giving a figure of, say, £150,000. Because each
year's profits would have been banked at the time, it was reasonable to
add cne-third of that sum by way of interest, making a total of £200,000,
which he asked us to award.

He calculated the suzm of £150,C00 bty estimating 1974's net profits
at £5,000, and then doubling the profits each year, with a slight

reduction for 1978, as follows:

1974 £5,000
1975 £10,000
1976 £20,000
1977 £40,000
1978 £75,000

£150,000

Counsel for Jackfrost asked us to take the Etude seriously as
basis for our award, and we have considered it at some lenzth. The
’Etude relies wholly on IMr. Origlia's forecast of projected sales. The
only statistics given in the Etude to assist in that forecast are
those supplied to IIr. Salliou by the French Chamber of Commerce for
the consumption of beer (of all types) throughout France. The figures
(in hecto-litres) are for beer consurned in 1970 - 1973 (and
subsesusnt years to 1978 were later added). In 1973, the figure was
21,938,000, it gracually increased to a peak of 25,715,0Qp in 1976
(which was & year of extensive drcught) and then fell back to 23%,626,000
in 1978.
Mr. Origlia irnformed us that, avert from these statistics, the

only other matters which he tock into account in malking his forecast

of /
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of sales were: <first, he obtained some figures for beer consumption
in Brittary and Normandy (but not for any other region); secondly,
he was personally impressed by the taste and quality of the lager;
and thirdly, the samples which he gave away were well received.

Finally, it was pointed out to us that the volume forecast,
although large on the face of it, envisaged-the lager taking only a
very small share of the beer market in France, as follows: 1In
1974 one in every 2,300 bottles consumed would be the lager, in 1975
one in every 700, in 1976 one in every 460, in 1977 one in every 350,
and in 1978 one in every 2990.

Ve feel bound to say tkat we can find very little realistic
soundation for Mr. Origlia's forecast. As we shall consider later,
the French market for lager on the evidence -given to us is extremely
competitive and very difficult to break into, as- Mr. Origlia conceded.
He himself had had no experience of marketing lager (or other beer),
either in France or elsewhere. We would have expected anyone
contemplating entering such a competitive field to make many further
enquiries.

In particular, we would have expected Mr. Origlia to have researched
the figures for the export of British lager to France. If he hal
.one so, we think that he would have been much less optimistic. Ve
have been given such figures obtained from the Brewers' Society in
London. They show that in 1974 the total of British lager exported to
France was 1901 barrels or 3110 hecto-litres. By 1978 that figure had
risen to 2,640 barrels or 4320 hecto-litres, which is .01823% of .-the
total beer consumprtion in France in that year. Mr.. Origlia's Tforecast
of his sales for 1978 was 1,200,000 cases or 81,816 hecto-litres,

scme nineteen times zreater than the total of British lager exported. to
France in that year, and .345275 of the total beer consutptidn in France
for that year. We shall consider thal figure later, but for the

present we limit outselves to saying that we can find no realistic

basis for lr. Origlia's forccast of sales; it appears to us to have tveen

largely uninfermed cpeculation.

We / ...
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We heard considerzble evidence avbout the difficulties of
//ﬂaunching British lager ia the French market, and because this
evidence is very relevant to the issue before us, we now summarisc it.

In May or June 1974 Jackfrost appointed lMr. C. Mahé, a
representative in Brittany and Normandy for wines, spirits and bteers
as one of its representatives in those areas to sell the lager on-
commission. He was given samples to distribute, and these were well
received. He then went on to sell a quantity of the lager in June and
July to wnolesalers, cafes and bars (he could not sell to supermarkets,
as they obtained their supplies from a central wholesaler). He
considersd that his sales were adversely affected by tne Tact that his
sbsequent supplies of the lager were not up to the samples (a
reference to the delivery which was immature);

He spoke of the French market for beer. Nine-tenths of the beer
drunk was lager ("biere blonde"). . British lager was good, but it was
not widely known in France. It faced strong competition from the
large well-established brands, such as Heinecken, Kronenbourg, Carlsberg,
La Meuse and Stella Artois, and was therefore difficult to sell.
Moreover, the launching of a new lager required a great deal of
advertising; the established firms had to keep advertising to
maintain their place in the market. Jackfrost's publicity consisted
in giving one btottle free in each ten sold. Another aspect of the
competition was that many outlets borrowed money from the lager
suppliers, which obliged them to taxe the lager from the supplier in
question, althougn that did not prevent them from buying otner brands
also.

Mr. Mahé expressed the view that despite the stiff competition
and the Tact that a large part of the market was already._ taken by
estabvlished brands, British lager should be able to firnd a place and

he had expecteé a "reasonrnable addition" to nis sales.

Fh

After tke breach of contract in July 1974, the lager ceascd to

be sold in France until in 1977 Grunhalle decided to try exporting

it /
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t 2gain to Irance, and engaged two representatives with very
considerable experience of selling lager in France. They were Mr. M.E.
Ponerard erdlir. AM. Villain.,. Their efforts lasted for two years. Total
sales were 73,000 francs (or £7,000) which resulted in a loss.
Grunhalle therefore largely abandoned the attempt in 1979, having
concluded that the French market was too difficult to break into, and
that the lager was not generally popular in France.

Mr. Pomerand is a British subject but spent his youth in France,
and has worked in the retail trade in England and France for many
years. He found a rartrer for Courages in France and opened a

“ain of public houses for Whitbread in Eolland, Belsgiuzm, France,
Italy and Switzerland. He therefore claimed to have many close
contacts in the beer trade in France, and an intimate knowledge of the
beer market there.

In 1977 Mr. Pomerand was working for Greenall Whitley, a United
Kingcéom btrewery commercially associated with Grurnhalle, and was
partly engaged in promoting sales of that Company's product, Chester
Brown (a barley wine), in France. Mr. Greenhall therefore asked Mr.
Pomerand to try to promote sales of the lager. Mr. Pomerand said
that it would be difficult, but that he would try. He worked on a
yearly fee of £2,300, not commission. After discussion with the
Commercial Lttaché at the British Embassy in Paris, he began by
temporarily estadlishing a public house in Le Printemps, a large store
in Paris, as part of a British Month which was opened by the British
Ambassador. FHe invited a number of distributors in the teer trade
to come and sample the lager in draught. They liked it, but
expressed the view that there were already too many lagers on the
markxet. MNo orders werz given.

Mr. Pomerand invited the President of the Distributors
Association in ParisnkgAvisit Jersey to discuss the lager. He spent

thrce days in the Izland, but rno orders resulted.

Mr. Pomerand /
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Mr. Pormerand next visited distributors along the liormandy and
Brittany cozst, in collaboration witn ilr.Villein, who was the
representative for Chester EBrown in an area from the Loire to
Cherbourg. He visited many retail outlets, and Mr.Villain visited
his contacts among the small distributors. Their sales were very
small, and in 1978 Mr. Pomerand persuaded Grunhalle to change the
label on their bottles to "La Blonde de Jersey'", because he gained
the impression that customers were suspicious of a lager with a German-
sounding nane but brewed in Jersey, and thought the product could
not be genuine.

He experienced difficulty in persvading . Thebault to resure
~~1ling the lager. IIr. Thebault's reluctance stemmed from unhappy
experiences in 1974. The price of the lager-then had not been
constant. Also, he remembered with annoyance that another wholesaler
in the same area, Mr. Blanchard, had been appointed in competition
with himself. That was contrary to the code of the trade. Mr.
Thebault did not refer to the immaturity of the lager in 1974. Mr.
Pomerand eventually managed to persuade !Mr. Thebault to resume selling
the lager after having his young daughter to stay in England and
after entertainirg the whole of his sales staff in Jersey.

Finally, in some desperation and not without some sense of
embarrassment, rMr. Pomerand used nis position as the President of the
Croix de Cuerre and Medaille Militaire Association in the Unrnited
Kinadom to askx the National President of the Association in France fB
write to local Asscciation Presidents to urge them to promote the
lager by asking for it in their local outlets, in the hope that this
would have a snowhkall eTrfect.

d

In 1979 ir. Pomerand had to tell Grunhalle that despite all his

=

efforts, and those of ir.¥illairn, ke could make no headway and he

advised Crunhalle on-ine promotion of the lager in France.

wpressed ceriain genceral views about-the beer
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rance. Firstly, France was not primarily a beer drinking
cour vry, Secondly, British lager had come late into a market where
severnl large companies were already well established. He did not
think it was exportable. Thirdly, a newcomer needed to spend large
surs of money to break into the market. Most outlets were tied to
breveries by substantial loans. Although, with the consent of the’
breweries, the licensees could se2ll other brands, they promoted
pricerily the brand of the trewery to which they were tied. There

rench, Belgian, Dutch, German
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difficult to offer a suificisnt irducement to persuade a retailer to
wake a new beer. To peneirzie the market one needed a specialised
product, such as Cuinness, and even then promotion expenses were very
high.

Mr.Villain, who is a representative of several breweries and has
been gelling teer since 1954, was asked by Mr. Pomerand in 1977 to
collzborate with him in selling the lager in lower Normandy,
and Ille-et-Vilaine, ard he endeavoured to do so for three years. As
he conceded, his efforts were a failure. In 1978, his best year Tor
sales of the lager, he sold 180 hecto-litres as compared with 42,000

ecto-litres of other lagers.

He explained that it was difficult for British lagers %to break
into a very competitive market, because they had come late into the
field. Mcst cafes wers tied to breweries by loans, and promotions
and gifts. To break into the market a newcomer nesded to spend

millions of francs. e felt that British lagers were not reral

A
m
1=
<
t
o

the taste of the French consumer, and that they compared unfavouratbl

<«

in price.

He admitted that +the sale of the lager was not "une vente sérieusc
but only "une vente'zccecsscire”. He had been able to sell it only at
these ouatlets where he wz2s making sales of other lagers. e had tried

sellinz it at outlets where he was not making other cales, but hed

had / ...



had no success beczuse most outletz were already tied to bhreueries
and were csubject to promotions of other lagers, of which there were
many. Moreover, French lagers, which he mostly sold, were cheaper
in price.

We have now summarised the main evidence on which we have to
base our judgzent. As we have said, Jacizfrost and Tascan asked us to
find that the enterprise would have greatly prospered, whereas

Grunhalle submitted that it would have bsen a financial failure. Our

)

conclusion, after a lengthy examination of the evidence and after

2wing all such inferences as we properly can in this difficult case,
is that the enterprise would probably have failed. We have to concede
that therewas a small chance that it might have had some success, but
if it had we feel certain that the profits would have been modest,
because we do not believe that the enterprise would ever have achieved
the larze resources required to penetrate beyond the Normandy/Brittany
region.

In reaching our conclusion we have been much influenced by the

evidence we heard from Mr. Pomerand, Mr.Villain and Mr. Mahé about
‘me difficulty of treaking into the French lager marxet, evidence which
we think is corroborated by the figures of total exports of British
lager tc France to which we have referred. Those figures constituted a
minute proportion of total lager consumption in France, and showed
little advance over the five years. We have no hesitation in accepting
that the French lager marrzet is highly competitive end protectionist
and that penetraticn of that market by a new product is extremely
difficult and requires very substantial finanrcial promotion and a close
knowledge of the maries, IMNr. Origlia and Jackfrost had few firancial

resources .and, we thinlk, little appreciation of the difficulties of

The argfuments o Jacklrost and Taccan for asxing us to find that
the lager would have been a success were, firstly, thet the Bavarian
recipe had keen gpecinlly acguired by IMr. Greenall and Mr. Clubb,

both cxpericnced and succeaszful brewers, for the export marvket becauce



- 19 -

they thouzht that it would appsal to the Continental taste;

secondly, that these two experienced brewers believed in 1972 to 1974
that it would be a great success and in a local newspaper article
spoke of sales having ezceeded "our greatest expectactions"; and
thirdly, that it was very well received at the Foire de Rennes; 4and
fourthly, that in the opinion of Mr. Ash, !Mr. Origlia, !Mr. Greenall
and Mr. Clubb it was an extremely good beer.

As to the first argurment, Mr. Greenall told us that the failure
of Ir. Pomerand and ixr.Villain to make any impact had convinced him
that he and Mr. Clubb were wrong,and that the taste, which was
special, obviously did not appeal to French consumers. As to the
second argument, he agreed that he and Mr. CIubb had been very
enthusiastic and optimistic at first, but after the experiences of
Mr. Pomerand and }r.Villain, he now realised that they had not
sufficiently investigated and understood the ramifications and
difficulties of the French market., As to the third argument, we think
that the enthusiastic reception of free samples does not afford a very
reliable guide to commercial success in a very resistant and competitive
market; in this respect, the experience of Mr. Pomerand is, we think,
very revealing. As to the fourth argument, we accept that it was an
extremely good lager to those to whom it appealed, but commercial
success depends on many other factors.

As we have already shown, the record of sales in France by
Grunhalle and later ty Ir. Ash, did not, in our view, give any solid
reason for optimiex, tut . Origlia hoped, by setting up a sales and
distribution organisation in France through Jackfrost, to make real

.

heedway. We can only <ay that the way in which he approached his
difficult task has not inspired in us any confidence at all that he
would have succeeced. iic teld us that when he met Mr., Ash he thought
he hzd "hit the jackpoil”. Ve accept that and we think that gees for

G
to ecxplain why ne failed to apdrecizte the harsh realitics of the tack

before / ...



afore him. He had had rno sxuperizsnce of selling beer in France, but
chat anparently did not 22icr him «t 211. Tor the Liude he conjured
=p figures of future salzz with very little researcnh or realistic
sasis. He appears to hove had little or none of the large firancial
~>esourcss needed to prozote the sales he envisaged, especially those
orojected beyond the Normandy/Britiary region.
We were urged to reject the evidsnce of !Mr. Pomerand and ¥r.
Zillain as being irrelesvar® and mislezding, for the following reasons.
First, that the ccnditions in 1677 to 1979 could well have been
-different Iroxz those existing in 197¢; the product and the market
conditions nignt have changed, thus rroviding no reliable indicator.
Ye co not accept that argument. The evidence was that the lager was
- 5till made from the same recipe. As to market conditions, our clear
conclusion from the evidence of Mr. Pomerand, lMr.Villain and indeed
Mr. Mahé is that the difficulties of marketing a new lager in 1974
~ vere as great as now.

Secondly, that Mr. Pomerand anrd Mr.Villain were part-tine
salesmen, as opposed to Jackfrost's Zull-time salesman, that they did
not really try hard becauss the sale of the lager was not "une vente
scuoieuse" for them, and that because from the start they had little
faith in the ability of British lager to penetrate the French market
their efforts were doomed from the beginning. We have considered that
argument carefully, but we cannot accept it. These two men were
extremely experienced in the French market, and Mr.Villain had a
close knowledge of the Normandy/Britiany region. We think that they
were just the men to have succeeded, if success were possible. Mr.
Pomerand, in particular, went, we believe, to very great lengths
indeed to promote the lager. The fTact that he achieved such a poor

resvonse has persuadied us that Jackirost is very unlikely to have done

t
Thirdly, that Grurhalle, by the tinming of its decision to try to

resume renetraticn of the French marzet, had shown that its sole

to bring evidence which would

B

purpcse in that resumption was to be able



give a Talse picture to the Court. We do not accept that argument.
We believe that the engagement of Mr. Pomerand was a genuine attempt
to try to resume sales in France. e

We have considered several other arguments put to us by the
parties, includinz the allegation, which had some basis, that the
lager was~cver—priced by comparison with other similar lagers, but
they do not affect the main reasons which we have mentioned and which

havzs 1led us to cur conclusion.
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For all ite reasons we have given, we have come to the
corciusion in this difficult case that Jackfrost would probably
not have madz any net profits in 1974, and that therefore the
enterprise would have been terminated at the end of 1974.
Alternatively, if it had not been and had continued into 1975,
we think that Jackfrost would probably not have made any net
profits in 1975 either, and that the enterprise would in such case
have definitely termirated at or before the end of 1975.

However, although that is our firm conclusion as to what would
protatly have occurred, we realise that in a case such as this
vhere there azrs so many uncertainties we canrot say positively that
Jackfrost would not have made some net profits in the Normandy/Brittany
area. e are certain ‘hat its enterprise would not have extended
beyond that regicn and that its profits would not in any year have
been substantial, but we have to accept that there was a small chance
tnzt Jackfrost woulé have zade modest net profits, and, if it had,
that it might have continued to do so throughout the five year period.
We accevt, therefore, that our award must reflect that small chance.

Ve have considered anxiously and at length how we should
translate that chance into monetary terms. Bearing in mind that
.his judgment includes an award of damages to Tascan, whose claim
is based on a percentagze of the estimated volume of the lager which
wovld have been sold to Jackfrost, we had at first hoped that it

might have teen possible Tor us to estimate the number of cases

&)

which Jackfrost might have been expected to sell, and to base our

avard to Jackirosi strictly on that volume of business. Unfortunately,
although we could have made an estimate of the number.of cases

which Jackirost might have sold in each year, none of the many

figures supplicd tTo us would have assisted us to translate that

volume of sales into net profits. lo doubt we might have adjourned

the caze for an accounting exercise to be done, but that would have

]

considerza®ly proleonged matters, which we consider to be undesirable,

and / ...
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and in any event we are not sure that such an exercise would
necessarily have produced any meaningful fisures. Ve have therefore
decided to do the best we can on the information which we have.

We have come 1o the conclusion that as regards Jackfrost we
should award a lump sum to compensate for the possible loss of the
limited net profits which it had a small chance of making in each
of the five years. It follows that we have concluded that it is
impossible to relate the two awards, that to Jackfrost and that to
Tascan, with any degree of precision, because the former depends
on many factors, such, for example, 25 efficiency of oseration,
whilst the latter dedsrnds entirely upon volume of sales., Ultimately,
however, as we rave s21d, Tascan depended on the success of
Jackfrost. That conclusion in fact refleets the way in which the
claim of each of those two parties was put to us; Jackfrost asked
for a lump sum which discounted the total net profits as shown in
the Etude by some sixty per cent, whilst Tascan relied wholly on
the totzal volume of purchases by Jackfrost as also shown in the
Etude.

Our award to Jackfrost is therefore as follows:-

1974 Loss of net profits £2,000
1975 e " 3,000
1976 weomron " 4,000
1977 oo " 3,000
1978 oo " 3,000

Total: £15,000

By way of explaration of our award, we wish to say that -

1. We have 2llowed higher profits for 1975 than for 1974

because it might have been expected that profits would te

sorewhat higher in the second year of the enterprise.

2./



2. 1976 was & year cf drought and tharelfore, iT the enterprise

were still ia belng, larger sales than n7»mal could have veen expected,
as the figures of botl: the Frenc’. Chamter of Commerce and the Brewers'
Society show.

3. As both those figures also show, total sales of beer and lager
dropped back in 1877. %We do not think that Jackfrost would have
increased its sales by further pencetration of the market, and so we
have reduced estimatzd profits to £3,000 for 1977, and maintained that
figure for 1878.

To the total sum cf £15,000, we aid interest of one-third, as
requested ty ccunsel for Jackircsy, making a total award of £20,000
by way of general damages due to Jackirost by Tascan.

In accordance with the previous judgment of the Court already
referred to, but subject to what we have to say in the next
paragraph, we order Grunkalle to indemnify Tascan in respect of the
two avards which we nhave made in favour of Jackfrost against Tascan
for expernses incurred {(spescial damages) and for loss of profits
(general damages) respectively.

Those two awards wider those respective heads raise a question
which was not canvassed before us, but which we think should have
been. It appears to us that Jackfrost may well not be entitled to

.im both its expenses in connexion with the business and loss of
net profits for the wrongful termination of that business. If there
had been no breach cf contract Jackfrost would have continued to
trade, at least for & time, and its expenses would have been deducted
from its gross profits. It seems to us, thercfore, that Jackfrost
is ncw in the position of having to elect between its claim for
expenses and its claim for loss of profits. We refer to the cases
of Cullina -v— 3British "Rema" Ianufacturing Company (1953) 2

A1l B.R. 1257, z2rd Anzglia Tclevision Company Limited -v- Reid

Becauce this matter was not raiced by either party at the

~

:¢aring, 1t will be necescary, if the parties cannot agree, to argue,
.T nccessary, the question before us, arnd, if the principle is

correct /



—correct, to consider whether any part of the expenses should lre
—excluded from the application of that principle in this case.
We turn now to the claim by Tascan against Grunhalle for general

.

—damages for loss of profits.
Ve wish first to comment on the submission by Grunralle that
—in assessing the general damages due to Tascan we should taxe into
caccount the failure of Tascan properly to mitigate the dazzage caused
-to it by the breach of contract. The submission was that although
—+the letter of 10th July, 1974, from Grunhalle to Tescan had bzen
Zound to justily Jzckirost in ceasing its opsration, there was no
—e: .n why Tascan should not have continued to sell the lager to
Dther distributors in France. Tascan should have realised that the
—tetter was motivated by hostility to Jackfrost and not to Tascan, and
;:haf‘therefore, having itself received assurances as to future
=Standards and supplies and having also contacts with lager distributors
-n France, it could have continued to trade.
“We accept that a person dapaged by a breach of contract has a
uty to mitigate trhat damage, but we do not consider that Tascan
—ould have been expected to continue trading in the lager in the
—ig of the letter to which we have referred and of the very
Zifficult circumstances which then faced Mr. Ash. As the previous

-~

~udgrent Tound, Crurhalle not only wrongly objected to Jackirost,

-
Rt

:nich Tascan had perfec

ct

properly avppointed 2s its sole distributc

n France, tut purporsed also to derczate wrongly from its appointment
= Tascan s sole concessionnaire by informing Tescan that it could

ot a oinﬁ\a sole distributor or indeed any distributor witnout
PP y

‘s

<s anp“ov ﬂl

ave been 2 future for Tascan in selling ithe lager, but we thinkx

It maz ke that if Mr. Ash had persevered there might

zat the darige done by the wronzful actions of Grurhalle vas
4 oad .

~ychological as well as material, and we cannct find that Iir. Ash,

2d thercfore Tascan, behaved unreasorab

I_l

¥ in ccasing all its operations.
or award ic therefore not liable to be reduced by a failure to

(A

_tigate the danage.
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As we nave already.

0]

aid, the success of the claim by Tascan

2gainst Gruuhalle is substantially deperndent on the outcomz of the

acon iz that Tascan, as

Q

-=laim by Jackirost ageinst Tascan. The 1
=he middle-man, took orders for the lager from.Jackfrost and then
—Drderaed the necessary supplies from Grurhalle.. The lager was
—Znvoiced to Tascan who then invoiced Jackirost, adding ten per cent
—%to the price charged by Grunhalle to cover its expenses and profit.
_Tascan esticated its profit .at half that z2rgin of ten per cent,
-a2nd therefores now clzizs by way of generzl damazes five per cent of

would have ordered
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“the cost to Jackfrost cf the laze
du. ing the Tive year period tut Zcr the breach cof contraci by
Grunhalle. It follows that the greater voluzme of the lager which

- Tascan can show that Jackfrost would have ordered, the greater the

damages to which it is now entitled.

Unlike Jackfrost, Tascan claimed that the Etude was a valid
forecdst of the volume of the lager which Jackfrost would have ordered,
and accordingly based its claim on that volume as shown by the
figures given under the heading "Prix d'achat de la bigére" for each
year. Those figurzs total 65,326,000 francs, of which five per cent
~ 3,266,300 francs, and that is the amount now claimed by Tascan
by way of general damages.

We have alrezdy expressed our conclusion that Jackfrost would
probably have rmade no net profit at all in 1974, and that had it
nevertheless continued to trade in 1975 it would probably have again
made 2 loss and would in such case have stopped trading. Tt is not
necessary for us to reveat the reasons which we have already given
for reaching that conclusion. As we have already said, however, we

ternative, that there -masa smr2ll chance that

—

must accept, in the &a
Jacikfrost would have made nodest ne ts from sales in Brittany
and Nermandy (we arc certain that thev would not in any year have

been sutstantial and that if it had it might have continued to do

so throushout the Five year period. In other words, we must accept

that /



—that thercwes.a .small- chance- that Jackfrost would..have continuzd .

—to trade throughcut the five year period and would, therefore, have

= continucd to order limiféd supplics from Tascan throughout that

to Tascan must reflect that chance,_bearing in

—period. Our award

—mind that, as we have already said, it is impossibie for us to'reié§e jA

—+the two awards, to Jackfrcst and to Tascan, with any precision,

Our zvard to Tascan must be based on the number of cases of
= the lager which we think that Tascan would have sold to Jackfrost.

Our conclusion is that those sales would have been as follows:-

1974 20,000 cases
1975 15,000 cases
1976 20,000Q. cases
1977 15,000 cases
T 1978 ""715,000 cases

e e
Aelwe e

3&é have aifeady given our general reasons for our conclusion

=~ that the enterprise of Jackfrost would probably not have succeeded,
"and our estizate of the number of cases that would have been sold
by Tascan to Jackfros*t is based, as is our avard to Jackfrost, on
that general conclusion. It will be seen, however, that wé have put
the 1974 figure higher than the 1975, 1977 and 1978 figures, and as
high as the 1976 figure. Our reasoning is as follows.

Even if, as we thirk probably would have been the case, the

s destired never to make a net profit, it would have taken

w

entergrise «
Jackfrost some time to come fo that conclusicn. Jackfrost would,
therefors, have ordered guite a substantial number of cases in 1974
in order to try to build up its business. Ve know - -that up to the
end of June it had ordered some 2,000 to 3,000 cases, and that two
further orders were rut in during the first two weeks of July
(althourh nzver cuecuted). We estimate that several further orders
would nhave teen given in 1974, and thatl total orders for that year

would rave amcunted tc 20,000 cases.

Different / ...



subssquent yvcars, because,
3% would probably have ceased

nave cccepted that therewas a

have continued during 1975, and
T

also a small chance that it would have continued beyond that date.

If it nad ceased at the end of 1974 no Turther orders would have been
.given.. If, however, it had contirnusd, therewas a small chance that
the busiregss would have Improved by comparison with 1974, and aight
nave prospersd even mere in the drougnt yjear of 1976. Balancing
thoz2 chances. ue have reducsd *the 1275 figure as cozmpared with the
1974 Tfigure., ouv therezfzsr we have follcved the general pattern

nich we have a2dopted in the case of Jackfrest. It follows from what
we have said that our award to Tascan is based on the same estimated
pattern of trade as we have adopted in the case of Jackfrost, except
for 1974, which, as we have explained, gives rise to different

considerations. Those considerations are that it is unlikely that

£

Jackfrost would have made a profit in 1974, but that if it had
continued in business there was a small chance that it would have made
a profit (or a larger profit) in 1975; Tascan, however, was bound

to make a profit in 1974, bhecause its profits were based on the
‘olume of orders received from Jackfrost and Jackfrost was
endeavouring to build up its business in 1974 and so would have
ordered some surplies (whether or not the business eventually made a
loss). As time passed, Tascan's profits, depending as they did on
orders received, would have been increasingly affected by the
financial success or otherwise of the enterprise, as to which we have
expressed our views.

Our award to Tasczan ig therefo

[$V]
[P

¢ based, firstly, on our estimate
of the volume of sales to Jackircst alrcady ziven, and secondly, on
Tascan's profi* eclement (which we accept would hove been 5%) on the®

cost to Jackirost of thore sales.

=3

hWe only cvidence as to that coct

whicl: /
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.which we have 1is the EZtude, wnica forecast for eacn of the five
years, under tihe item "Prix d'achat de la bieére", the total estimated
cost to Jackfrost oI the volume of lager which, according to the
forecast, it would buy from Tascan in that year. That figure, when
taken with the estimated volume of sales forecast on page 1 of the
Etude, enables us to calculate the forecast price per one thousand
cases of the lager for each year. . We have, or course, no means of
knowing whether if the contract had not been terminated, the lager
would have been sold by Tascan to Jackfrost at the prices forecast,
but Tascan, in its sutzissions to us, was content to rely on those
figurss, and we thereiore do so too.

Ve therefcre arrive at an award in francs calculated cn the

above bvasis, as follows:- _

Year Cases Invoice Cost
1974 20,000 280,8GC0.00
1975 15,000 207,920.79
1976 20,000 341,066.67
1977 15,000 275,986.20
1978 15,000 313,750.00

Total: 1,419,523.656

Five per cent of that estimated total invoice cost for the five
years amounts to 70,976.18 francs. To that sum we add, as requested
by Tascen, interest at ten ver cent for the period from 8th March,
1978, the date of the rrevicus judgment to 21st September, 1980, which
is 18,059.82, maxirz, therefore a total award in francs of 89,027.00.
We agree that our awari should be in sterling, and therefore, subject

to our next varagravh, we make a2 Tormal award in such sum in sterling

4]

as is equivalent to the above sum in francs at the rate of exchange
(buying) ruling at the date oF7 delivery of this judgment.

Althousn we hzve rnot been asked to assess the expenses claimed by
Tascan, it appears to us that the question which we have raised as to
whether Jackirost can claim both expenses and losc of nct proiits or
whether it should bte obliged 1o elect between those iwo claims,

equally /
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